SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 6, 2013
3:05 p.m

3:05: 27 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Vice-Chair Fairclough called the Senate Finance Conmittee
nmeeting to order at 3:05 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Donny O son

ALSO PRESENT

Val eri e Brooks, Self;

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Jim Sykes, Self, Palner; Keith Silver, Self, Anchorage;
Steve Pratt, Executive Director, Consunmer Energy Alliance
Al aska, Anchorage; Brendan Babb, Self, Anchorage; Scott
Thorson, Self, Anchorage; Jim Plaquet, Alaska Support
I ndustry Al liance, Fai r banks; Ri ch Seifert, Al aska
Citizenry, Fairbanks; Brad Faulkner, Self, Honer; Wes
Newconb, Self, Honmer; Bob Shavel son, Executive Director,
Cook Inlet Keeper, Honer; Carl Portman, Deputy Director,
Resource Devel opnent Council, Anchorage; Tom Ml oney, Self,
Anchor age; St ephanie  MacSwai n, Sel f, Anchor age; Jim
Udel hoven, Udel hoven G| Field Services, Anchorage; Phillip
Fur bush, Self, Palnmer; Mary Toutorghiu, Self, Kenai; Paul
Metz, Self, Fairbanks; Jerry Ahiwnona, Self, Anchorage; Tom
Lakosh, Self, Anchorage; Cathy Duvburrn, Self, Anchorage;
M ke Heiring, Self, Anchorage; M chael Jesperson, Self,
Anchorage; Peter Machsey, Self, Anchorage; Dirk Nelson,



Sel f, Fairbanks; M chele Vasquez, Self, Kenai; Ray Metcalf,
Self, Anchorage; Priscilla Simons, Self, Anchorage; EIi
Stine, Self, Anchorage; Andy Rogers, Self, Anchorage; Bill
Warren, Self, Kenai; Reed Christensen, Self, Anchorage;
Jeff Acton, Self, Anchorage; Val Hanley, Self, Anchorage;
Maynard Tapp, Sel f, Anchorage; Berni e Hof f man, Sel f,
Fai rbanks; Peter Stokes, Self, Anchorage; Janmes Price,
Self, Kenai; Ben Mhr, Self, Anchorage; N ck Pepperworth,
Sel f, Anchorage; Mary Nanuwak, Self, Anchorage; N ck Me,
Sel f, Anchor age; Judy Patri ck, Sel f, Wassi | a; Laura
Fagnani, Self, Anchorage; Marleanna Hall, Self, Anchorage

Phillis Spencer-Belz, Self, Anchorage;

SUMVARY

SB 21 O L AND GAS PRODUCTI ON TAX
SB 21 was HEARD and HELD in comrttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb21

SENATE BILL NO 21

"An Act relating to appropriations from taxes paid
under the Alaska Net Inconme Tax Act; relating to the
oil and gas production tax rate; relating to gas used
in the state; relating to nonthly installnment paynents
of the oil and gas production tax; relating to oil and
gas production tax credits for certain |osses and
expenditures; relating to oil and gas production tax
credit certificates; relating to nontransferable tax
credits based on production; relating to the oil and
gas tax credit fund; relating to annual statenents by
producers and explorers; relating to the determ nation
of annual oil and gas production tax values including
adj ustnments based on a percentage of gross value at
the point of production from certain |eases or
properties; maki ng conf orm ng anmendnent s; and
providing for an effective date."

Vi ce- Chair Fairclough OPENED public testinony.

3:05:34 PM

JI' M SYKES, SELF, PALMER (via teleconference), believed CSSB
21(RES) may be successful after the inclusion of severa
changes. He reconmmended that the commttee reduce the GRE

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



rate below 20 percent with a 5 or 6 year cap. He opined
that the net operating loss interest rate needed to be
reduced substantially. He thought the CS would work well

for new areas of devel opnent; however, he believed the bill

needed to be carefully crafted to ensure that nmaxi mum
profits were not given away to oil conpanies while the
conpanies continued to nmake nmaxinmum profits on |egacy
fields. He stressed that the legacy fields were sone of the
nmost reliable and profitable fields in the world and that
they should remain under the current Alaska' s Cear and
Equi tabl e Share (ACES) system He sent in a handout that
was passed out to commttee nenbers; it showed projections
of offshore production that would occur in 8 to 10 years

He believed of fshore production would provide a significant
anount of oil into the Trans-Al aska Pipeline System (TAPS).
He pointed to concerns related to throughput; he believed
t hroughput woul d increase and cone close to levels seen in
1988. He discussed revenue earned by the state at various
times. He enphasized the issue was primarily about price

He referenced a book by John MIller titled "The Last
Barrel." He asked the commttee to consider the anount of
state revenue that would be |ost under the legislation and
how much production would be required to offset the costs

He enphasized that the state deserved to tax its oil at
full value; the state should not hope it would get nore
revenue |ater based on promises that my or rmy not
materialize. He nentioned Al aska's tax rates could not be
reduced enough to stop oil production in other areas of the
wor | d.

Vice-Chair Fairclough asked that witten coments be
provided to Co-Chair Meyer's office.

3:08: 50 PM

KEI TH Sl LVER, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
di scussed that Alaska had the highest tax rates in the
nation. He remarked that corporate capital was limted and
only the nost profitable projects in a conpany's portfolio
woul d be funded. He discussed that investors were taking
their noney elsewhere to receive a greater return. He
believed the state needed a new policy that would encourage
long-term planning and investnent in new production. He
enphasi zed that the anount of throughput in the pipeline
did matter; he stated that current |evel was w thin 100, 000
to 200,000 barrels per day of reaching the practical limt.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



3:10: 37 PM

STEVE PRATT, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, CONSUMER ENERGY ALLI ANCE
ALASKA, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), vocalized support
for the legislation. The organization believed the nost
significant threat to the state was declining TAPS
t hroughput and increased spending. He opined that Anericans
had an interest in obtaining conpetitively priced donestic
energy and robust economc activity. He stated that at
| east 30 percent of working Al askans were dependent on oil
and gas exploration and developnment for enploynent. He
pointed to declining oil production in the state. He
believed that Alaska's contribution to the energy supply
would continue to decline wthout changes in state and
federal policies. He relayed that increased prices and new
technologies had led to substantial increases in oil
production in other states. He believed the state needed to
be nore conpetitive. He stressed that an increase of
t hroughput to 50 percent of the TAPS capacity would add $18

billion per year to U S. economc activity; it would also
reduce the export of U S. noney to other nations. He stated
t hat increased economic activity would Dbenefit al
Al askans.

3:12: 53 PM

BRENDAN BABB, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), voiced
opposition to the bill. He believed the reduced tax rate in
the legislation catered to the oil industry. He supported a
reduction in tax rates only after oil production increased.
He noted that oil conpanies were sone of the nost

profitable organizations in the world; he believed Al aska
needed to provide a nore challenging negotiation. He
di scussed that oil conpanies could get a $2 billion profit
per year on a $2 million investnent if the tax rate was
| owered. He noted that oil fields had been declining since
1988. He stated that ACES had not caused the decline. He
pointed to record high enploynent on the North Slope; he
expressed disappoint that 50 percent of the workers were
from outside of Alaska. He was in favor of incentives to
increase jobs for Al askans. He supported the current ACES
system He equated reducing the tax rate before production
increased to a teenager who never took out the trash asking
for an increase in allowance with a promse to start taking
the trash out.

3:15: 49 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



SCOTT  THORSON, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
pointed to the conpetitive situation between Al aska and
North Dakota. He stated that the 80 percent governnent take
on a $100 per barrel of oil was high. He discussed the
process in North Dakota and stated that it was sinple due
to privately owned | and. He believed the high cost of doing
business and the difficulty of accessing resources nmade
Al aska unconpetitive. He believed that the only thing the
state could control was the tax environnent.

3:18:19 PM

JIM PLAQUET, ALASKA SUPPCRT | NDUSTRY ALLI ANCE, FAlI RBANKS
(via teleconference), supported the legislation. He agreed
that the government take remained too high under the ACES

system He stated that nuch oil remained on the North
Sl ope. He opined that high oil prices should spur
investnments in new oil, but the new investnents had not

occurred to date. He |isted conparisons between Al aska and
ot her states. He stressed that ACES did not incentivize new
investnment. He reiterated that the high governnment take
woul d encourage oil production in other areas outside of
Al aska. He urged increasing conpetition.

3:21:45 PM

RI CH SEl FERT, ALASKA Cl TI ZENRY, FAI RBANKS (via
t el econference), vocalized opposition to the |egislation.
He referred to clainms that ACES was responsible for a
decline in production. He stated that a natural and
expected decline had been occurring since 1988. He
mai nt ai ned that unless other oil production canme online the
| egacy fields were the nost significant and a source of the
easiest oil the state would ever get. He did not believe
ACES had a significant inpact on the decline. He opined
that decisions nade by the state would have been nuch
easier if it had audited the process and exercised due
diligence in accounting oversight for production. He
stressed that it was not possible to know that prom ses to
i ncrease production would actually occur if the tax rate
was decreased. He reiterated that a better investnent would
be auditing production and production costs by conpany. He
believed a better case could be made for naking changes to
the tax structure if reliable audit data was obtai ned.

3:24: 43 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



BRAD FAULKNER, SELF, HOVER (via teleconference), testified
in opposition of SB 21. He shared that he had worked in the
i ndustry. He opposed any additional tax breaks for new oil
pools found in legacy fields. He said that field managenent
was the problem and that there were known reserves of oil
that were easily available and surrounded by sufficient
infrastructure. He noted that the natural decline had been
anticipated. He said that there was untapped oil sitting on
the North Slope that no one was recognizing or admtting to
that would keep the pipeline full. He nentioned that under
the Economic Limt Factor (ELF), 80 percent of the oi

| eavi ng Kuparuk and Prudhoe Bay had no production tax.

3:27:06 PM

WES NEWCOWB, SELF, HOMER (via teleconference), voiced
support for SB 21. expressed concern that that the state
would fall behind in its fiduciary responsibilities should

oil production continue to decline. He wunderstood that
Al aska's people, particularly Native Al askans, depended on
oi | revenues. He testified in support of further

producti on.

3:28:17 PM

BOB SHAVELSON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, COOK | NLET KEEPER, HOMVER
(via teleconference), testified in opposition to SB 21. He
believed that under the legislation the state would be
giving away billions of dollars to the industry while
squandering Alaska's finite wealth. He felt that the public
deserved a better return on their resources, as well as a
better wunderstanding of the fiscal |andscape surrounding
the issue. He urged for maintaining progressivity in the
tax regine. He contended that ACES was creating a
renascence in Cook Inlet of exploration and devel opnent
that he had w tnessed. He believed that Alaska had an
obligation to future generations to manage the oil wealth
responsi bly.

3:30:40 PM

CARL  PORTMAN, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, RESOURCE  DEVELOPMENT
COUNCI L, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in support
of SB 21. He believed that there was oil stranded in the
ground because the state was |ooking to nmaxim ze short term
revenue at the expense of encouraging investnment and new

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



production. He stressed that since 2007 the state had | ost

over 210 mllion barrels per day with a point of production
gross value of over $17 billion. He said that if a less
aggressive tax regime cut the decline in half it would
result in over $8 billion circulating in the econonmy. He

believed that the state was giving away the future for
short term unsustainable tax revenue. He said that the
busi ness comunity was fearful of what continued declining
TAPS throughput would do to the econony as a whole. He
expressed support for Governor Parnell's approach. He
stressed that there was an urgent need for the state to
conpete in order to stem the production decline and
increase investnent. He relayed that the resources were in
the ground and that all Alaska needed was the right tax
policy to begin production. He encouraged the conmttee to
further hone the legislation to make Al aska even nore
attractive to the industry.

3:33: 57 PM

TOM MALONEY, SELF, ANCHORACE (via tel econference), spoke in
support of SB 21. He quoted the former Departnent of
Revenue Conmi ssioner Pat Glvin from a 2007 Resource
Devel opnent  Council resource review publication, which
spoke to the fact that ACES had not inproved the investnent
climate of the state. He said upon the advent of ACES, the
North Sl ope was producing 739,000 barrels of oil per day.
He gave a brief history of the decline over the past 5
years. He stated that in 2012 the highest producing nonth
was |ower than the |owest producing nmonth in 2007. He
stated that the reduction of production had resulted in
massi ve revenue loss for the state. He added that Al aska
needed nore jobs for future generations.

3:37:38 PM

STEPHANI E MACSWAI N, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
spoke in support of SB 21. She expressed the nyriad of ways
that the oil industry had benefited her directly. She
expressed concern that the decline in oil production would
result in fewer opportunities for future generations. She
testified that her friends were relocating to other states
because of the waning oil production.

3:39:12 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



JI'M UDELHOVEN, UDELHOVEN O L FI ELD SERVI CES, ANCHORAGE (Vi a
tel econference), testified in support of SB 21. He
testified that his famly and enployees had stayed in
Al aska, rather than to follow the boom in North Dakota
several years ago, out of a belief that production would
i nprove. He said that now, one year later, he was noving
enpl oyees from Alaska to shale fields in Texas and was
negotiating contracts in North Dakota. He stated that every
year the tax regine remained the sanme, change becane nore
and nore unlikely.

3:42: 13 PM

PH LLI P FURBUSH, SELF, PALMER (via teleconference), spoke
in opposition to SB 21. He stated that the nmin problem
with the Alaskan econony was the Jlack of economc
diversification and irresponsible spending practices. He
believed that the non-renewable resources would definitely
run out. He stressed that instead of spending billions in
the extraction of oil, the state should be investing in
nore diverse ways. He suggested that the state exam ne the
saving and spending practices of Norway. He believed that
the state should exanmine alternative energy possibilities.
He said that the "extract and spend quickly” nentality
woul d bankrupt state.

3:45:32 PM

MARY  TOUTORGHI U, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference),
testified in opposition to SB 21. She expressed concern
with the spending practices of the state. She stated that
the industry was hol ding back on production in order to get
a better deal from the state. She felt that the governor's
proposed plan was a giveaway. She noted that the oi
conpani es had not nade any prom ses for the tax breaks. She
believed that the proposed |egislation offered a donation
to industry and not an incentive for production.

3:48: 41 PM

PAUL METZ, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), testified
in support of SB 21. He referred to previous testinony that
related to the high cost for industry to work in the
Al askan terrain. He believed that the tax structure should
make the state nore conpetitive with other states. He
opined that the state was the highest taxing jurisdiction
in the industry.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



3:50: 34 PM

JERRY  AHI VWNONA, SELF, ANCHORACGE (via teleconference),
testified in opposition to SB 21. He believed that the
industry was "strong arm ng" the state. He thought that the
time spent on the legislation was a waste of Ilegislative
time and taxpayer noney. He believed that oil conpanies
should have separate accounting rather than gl obal
apportionment.

3:52:23 PM

TOM LAKOSH, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified
in opposition to SB 21. He hoped that he conmttee would
craft policy that avoided exploitation of the state by the
oil industry. He felt that the bill was the Al askan version
of the federal sequester | egislation, and that the
conbination of the two would cut the state's budget so
severely that recovery and diversification wuld be
i npossi ble. He stressed that the state needed to focus on
| ong-term production of oil, not filling the pipeline for
the short-term He believed that the recession of sea ice
on the North Slope would nmake it easier for the state to
ship oil directly from the slope making the pipeline
obsol et e.

3:55:47 PM

CATHY DUVBURRN, SELF, ANCHORACGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of ACES reform and SB 21. She
highlighted that ACES had been unsuccessful because
t hroughput had decreased over the past 5 years. She
expressed hope that her famly would be able to find work
in the state and not be forced to nove to North Dakota or
Texas.

3:57:24 PM

M KE  HEI RI NG SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 21. He stressed that the passage
of ACES had created the decline in throughput. He believed
that tax reform was necessary in order to ensure the future
of Al aska.

3:58:45 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



M CHAEL JESPERSON, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 21. He felt that the state could
be nore attractive to industry. He thought the cost of
doi ng business in the arctic environnent, coupled with the
tax system nmade the state highly unattractive to the
industry. He said that he feared that his famly would not
be able to find work because of the decline.

4:00:41 PM

PETER MACHSEY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
expressed support for SB 21. He testified to the lack of
public outcry when Alaska's Cear and Equitable Share
(ACES) was passed in 2007. He believed that the |I|arge
investment in infrastructure, and the jobs created in the
state had earned the industry a financial return. He
queried the manufacturing credit witten into the
| egi sl ation.

Vice-Chair Fairclough stated that M. Mchsey could submt
guesti ons concer ni ng t he | egi sl ation directly to
| egi slative offices.

4:02:42 PM

DI RK  NELSON, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference),
testified against SB 21. He stated that the cost of doing
business on the North Slope was often based on net profits
and not gross, and offered that BP was probably |ooking at
net profits also. He pointed out that ConocoPhillips had a
profit of nearly $28 per barrel of oil in Al aska the
previ ous year and opined that this profit nmargin was higher
than anywhere else in North Anerica. He suggested that
Governor Parnell was not defending his own |egislation. He
di scussed charts that conpared decline in throughput to
revenue rates and asserted that there was little
correlation between the two. He pointed out that even when
15 out of 19 fields on the North Sl ope were severance tax
free throughput had already been in decline. He wondered
why t hroughput woul d have been in decline when there was no
tax if the problem was revenue. He stated that BP and
ConocoPhillips had not "necessarily" been forthright wth
its position or its finances and that there was no forced
di scl osure. He discussed a BP nmeno from 2004 and rel ated
that it did not sound like a commtnent to reinvest in
Al aska. He stated that there was no evidence that SB 21
woul d increase throughput or revenue. He concluded that he

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



woul d like supporters of SB 21 in Juneau to sign contracts
that guaranteed that if the bill passed, they would not
seek enploynment with the oil producers for 15 years.

4:06: 06 PM

M CHELE  VASQUEZ, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference),
expressed strong opposition to SB 21. She offered that

| arger tax breaks for conpanies to drill Alaska's oil made
no sense. She pointed out that oil conpanies had nmade
billions off of the state's oil and that they did not need

an incentive to do the business that they were in. She
stated that Al aska should not give away its oil resources
with broader tax breaks and that doing so would take away
from other nmuch-needed prograns. She supported |eaving
Al aska's Cl ear and Equitable Share (ACES) in place.

4:07:31 PM

RAY  METCALF, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via t el econference),
testified against SB 21. He related that he had heard
testimony, which stated that it was not as profitable to

drill and produce oil in Alaska as it was in other places;
however, ConocoPhillips reported a $29 per barrel profit in
Al aska the previous year. He offered that nei t her

ConocoPhi | I'i ps, ExxonMobil, or BP nade that nuch per barrel
anywhere else in the world. He discussed the terns for Iraq
contracts that BP, ExxonMbil, and Shell Gl had signed in
the past two years and related that none of those contracts
gave those conpanies even as little as $2 per barrel. He
menti oned the discussion about losing workers to North
Dakota and stated that there were nore people enployed on
the North Slope than there ever had been. He pointed out
that tankers were com ng back from the Wst Coast with oi

still onboard because they could not unload it;
furthernore, BP was currently producing at the rate that
its market consumred the oil t hat it refined and

distributed. He offered that there would be no place to put
anot her 100,000 barrels a day in the pipeline. He related
that oil conpanies would produce enough oil from Prudhoe
Bay to neet their nmarket share and woul d continue the sane
strategy even if the oil was given to them for free. He
pointed out that the state should not cater to the oil
conpani es and that Al aska was not the highest taxing entity
in the US or the world, but was below the internationa
aver age.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



4:12:49 PM

PRI SCI LLA SI MVONS, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
expressed support of nore jobs. She discussed the oil boom
in Texas, through which that state had doubled its oi
production since 2010. She shared that Texas had been in
the oil production business for decades prior to the Trans-
Al aska Pipeline System (TAPS) and that she had w tnessed
co-workers leaving Alaska for North Dakota and Texas. She
wondered why Texas was increasing production and job
opportunities while Alaska's production was declining. She
of fered t hat Al askans like her sel f want ed nor e
opportunities for oil production and expressed disbelief
that the Al aska's huge resource base had resulted in about
a 26 percent decline, or 200,000 barrels per day, of
production over the last five years. She stated that she
wanted to stay and live in Alaska. She concluded that Texas
had many advantages over Al aska, but that the state should
not make job opportunities one of the advantages.

4:15:01 PM

ELI STINE, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified
in support of nore oil and gas production in Al aska. He
related that he had recently noved to Anchorage from
Col orado because of Anchorage's job opportunities. He
di scussed the decrease in investnment and production in
Al aska. He pointed out that over the last five years, the
state had seen a 25 percent decline in oil production. He
shared that Al aska was partly a great place to be because
of its tax revenue fromoil production. He related that the
state needed to be sure that Alaska and its citizens got

their fair share, while still creating an environnent that
opened conpetitive opportunities for new investnent in the
oil and gas industry. He concluded that he was worried

about his future in Alaska due to the declining oi
production and expressed a desire to stay in the state. He
urged the state not to continue down the path it was
currently on.

4:17:35 PM

ANDY  ROCGERS, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 21, but offered that it was not
conpetitive enough. He was concerned that younger Al askans
had the sane cynical concerns that people over 40 years-old
usual ly had. He discussed the coments of previous

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



testifiers and expressed concern that several Al askan
enpl oyers had stated that they were taking their businesses
outside of Al aska. He urged the conmttee to inprove SB 21.

4:19: 39 PM

BILL WARREN, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), spoke
against SB 21 and in favor of "tweaking" Alaska' s Cear and
Equitable Share (ACES). He stated that there was a |ot of
"fear based® drama currently going on. He shared that
Al aska's econony was cyclical and that he had made a good
living in the state. He discussed the legacy fields and
offered that if you poured water out of a bucket, it would
soon be depleted. He opined that if the "big three" wanted
to drill deeper or laterally, the state should let them He
mentioned that the independent oil conpanies would help
"save" Alaska and that the state was currently not
conpeting with North Dakota and Texas. He pointed out that
local hires would be a good thing to ask from the "big
three" and reported that the North Slope was full of out-
of -state workers. He opined that the high aspect of
progressivity was set during a period of corruption and
concluded that changing the state's oil policy too often
would lower its credibility. He was hopeful for Al aska's
future and shared that the big oil conpanies would |eave
Al aska when Prudhoe Bay was depleted, however, the
"i ndependents” would take over and nake the state a good
l'iving.

VALERI E BROCKS, SELF, expressed support of funding for
education. She related that the oil industry in Al aska
provided income for many, but that education served
everyone in the state. She discussed the benefits of
education and offered that Al askan students had not seen an
increase in the base student allocation (BSA) of funds for
public education for the prior three years; furthernore,
without an increase in the current year, the BSA would
remain the sane for a fourth year. She contrasted the | ack
of an increase in student funding to an $11.9 billion
profit that "one oil conpany"” had nade several years prior.
She offered that the funding that the proposed tax
incentives granted big oil conpanies could be better used
to maintain and inprove the public education systemin the
Al aska to the benefit of everyone in the state.

4:26:15 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



REED CHRI STENSEN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 21, but related that the bil

did not go far enough. He urged the need to nmeke Al aska's
oil and gas climate nore conpetitive. He shared that he
wor ked for a business that nmanufactured products for use on
the North Slope and stated that the conpany's business had
declined by over 40 percent since Alaska's Cear and
Equitable Share (ACES) was passed; furthernore, t he
alarmng downward trend appeared to be continuing. He

pointed out that the downturn in production was due, in
|arge part, to the fiscal environnent created by ACES. He
offered that oil conpanies could get better returns on
their investnents in other areas of the world. He expressed
that Al aska needed nore private sector jobs, investnent,
and nore oil in the pipeline and stated that the pipeline

was two-thirds enpty. He opined that ACES was accelerating
the decline and was bringing the eventual shut down date
closer. He urged that ACES should be fixed and shared that
the effects of the production decline could be felt in
state jobs, education, public services, charities, and
constructi on.

4:28:42 PM

JEFF ACTON, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in
support of SB 21. He discussed the oil boom in Al aska and
shared that he had worked 20 years on the North Slope. He
stated that in recent years, the oil environment in North
Dakota, Texas, and the Gulf of Mexico was simlar to the
boom that Al aska had experienced. He pointed out that the
Al aska's Clear and Equitable Share's (ACES) tax structure
had coincided with the steady decline in production and
also resulted in fewer capital projects. He offered that
Al aska was conpeting in all corners of the U S. and the
wor |l d. He observed that the discussion was different in the
Lower 48 than it was in Al aska. He explained that the Lower
48's regines did not focus on the short-term or tax
gimm cks, but had a primary concern of inproving the
busi ness environnment. He offered that wthout adopting a
new policy that pronoted the devel opnent of resources, the
state's production decline would continue.

4:31:11 PM

VAL HANLEY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), expressed
his support for SB 21. He stated that he worked for an oi
conpany in Anchorage and related that he worked human

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



resources for that conpany; furthernore, standby enployees
were asking him when the conpany would be opening nore
positions in its Texas branch and when it would go to the
Dakot as. He stated that the conpany he worked for
considered itself an Al askan conpany and had been in the
state since the 1970s; its board nenbers had decided to
wait and listen to promises to bring nore production to
Alaska's oil fields, as well as assurances that Al aska's
Cl ear and Equitable Share (ACES) would be fixed. He stated
that the conpany he worked for was starting to get nore
contracts in Texas and was now | ooking at contracts in the
Dakotas. He continued to discuss |osing standby enployees
to the Lower 48, but shared that sone of them wanted to
return to Al aska once nore work was avail able. He urged the
state to fix ACES in order to allow private businesses to
hire in Alaska and get the state's econony goi ng again.

4:33:14 PM

MAYNARD  TAPP, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),

expressed his support of renoving progressivity from SB 21
and fixing Alaska's Clear and Equitable Share (ACES). He
offered that SB 21 should be split into two pieces; one
piece would get rid of progressivity and the second piece
woul d fix everything else. He was unsure if the tax system
could be fixed in one step and opined that breaking the
bill into pieces mght help. He stated that Canada, the
@ulf of Mexico, and North Dakota were Alaska's rea

conpetitors. He offered that it had been proven that noney
taken from oil conpanies in the form of taxes had inpacted
i nvestnment for new production. He stated that a 50/50 split
seened fair in terns of total governnent take. He offered
that the state needed to |evel production at 600,000
barrels per day and lint spending based on a $100 barrel

of oil "to that revenue that cones in." He addressed the
comments of earlier testifiers that clainmed the state was
spending nore on capital expenditures and reported that
anything that cost over $2,400 that was not an exact
repl acenent was considered a capital expenditure. He shared
that the state had a 30 year-old plant, which was producing
nostly water; furthernore, a lot of the capital investnents
that were currently being nade were purposed to handle the
wat er .

4:36:52 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



BERNI E  HOFFMAN, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified against SB 21 and pointed out that the audit on
Al aska's Clear and Equitable Share (ACES) had not been
conpleted yet. She offered that the ACES audit was needed
to determine if the tax system was working or not and
observed that good data would lead to good decisions. She
poi nted out that the oil conpanies had called SB 21 "a good
start” and opined that the conmpanies would want even nore
in order to incentivize them and acconplish what the state
want ed. She offered that ACES was working and that she had
not heard convincing evidence that it needed to be fixed
She reported that the state should treat its oil like
savi ngs and should not give it away w thout good, unbi ased
data to nmake decisions with. She related that the state
needed to diversify its econony and expressed concern that
if SB 21 was passed, the state's services would be
i npacted; as a result, there would be a future possibility
of a state-income tax. She opined that the Legislature
shoul d go back to a 120-day session

4:40:19 PM

PETER STCOKES, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), urged
the passage of SB 21. He pointed out that the bill would
allow new investnents and would increase production from
the North Slope. He stated that Alaska's Cear and
Equitable Share (ACES) had resulted in extracting nmnuch
hi gher taxes from the oil conpanies and that Al aska had
beconme very unconpetitive in attracting new oil investnent,
particularly at higher oil prices. He stated that the CS to
SB 21 was good start for achieving new investnents and
expressed appreciation at the elimnation of progressivity.
He suggested that a tax rate, with revenue exclusions and
credits, to allow for a constant 60 percent to 63 percent
government take at all price ranges. He observed that PFC
Energy and Roger WMarks could work wth EconOne, the
Departnment of Natural Resources, and the Departnent of
Revenue. He wanted to incentivize developnent for new
production within existing PAs that would not be recovered
until a conpany spent the new investnents. He offered that
the existing PAs were the areas where the state could bring
the quickest and |argest increases in new production for
t he short-term He st at ed t hat exploration-credit
nodi fications should be left in place to allow new
explorers to continue to explore. He concluded that wthout
new exploration and conti nued devel opnent of new production

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 16 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



within the existing PAs, the efforts to lower of flatten
t he production decline would not occur.

4:43: 39 PM

JAMES PRI CE, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), testified in
opposition to SB 21 and in support of Alaska's Cear and
Equitable Share (ACES). He pointed out that before ACES

the state had the Economc Limt Factor (ELF). He stated
that the ELF was justified by claimng that the producers
on the North Slope were economcally disadvantaged, but
pointed out that oil conmpanies had billions of dollars in
profit under the ELF. He offered that ACES was good
legislation and that SB 21 was taking us in the wong
direction. He stated that BP had a contract with Iraq for a
profit of $2 per barrel, but that conpany was naking $28
per barrel in Alaska. He stated that Al aska did not have
access to its resources, which needed to be addressed
before the state gave oil conpanies nore noney. He shared
that he did not see how SB 21 would benefit Al askans. He
related that he had worked on the North Slope for many
years and that nost of the workers there were not from
Al aska. He concl uded that nothing would be solved by giving
Al askan profit to the producers.

4:47:06 PM

BEN MOHR, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), expressed
support of SB 21. He stated that the Al aska needed to "put
out a little bit nore" in order to have the best "players”
cone and maximze the returns to the state. He expressed
concern that the state's resource managenent strategy of
getting what it could while it could was shortsighted,
unsust ai nable, and was not a good philosophy. He pointed
out that the state was nanaging its oil policy like it was
on "life support” and opined that this was not a good way
to run a business. He encouraged the conmittee to action
and concluded that the decline rate and the |lack of
conpetitiveness would nake people |eave Al aska. He refuted
the testinony of a previous testifier and related that Cook
I nl et keeper was an environnental organization that had been
trying to shutdown oil and gas devel opnent in Cook Inlet
for decades.

4:49: 24 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 17 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



NIl CK PEPPERWORTH, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
expressed support for SB 21. He discussed his history
working and living in Al aska. He believed that Al aska did
not have the opportunity to diversify and pointed out that
oil was the driver for the budget. He observed that there
had not been any school major school projects built in the
| ast few years because there was no noney. He nentioned
that the mlitary was not spending noney in 2013 because of
a lack of funding. He read the governor's key principles
for tax reform He discussed North Dakota and related that
the infrastructure there could not keep up with the anount
of work. He pointed out that there was currently no new
production or new wells being drilled on the North Slope

He concluded that the recession was just "catching up" in
Al aska and that reform was needed to avoid it. He concl uded
t hat some places were offering "craft people" a higher per-
hour wage than Al aska was for workers on the North Sl ope.

4:53:30 PM

MARY  NANUWAK, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of prioritizing education. She
believed that it did not take a "rocket scientist" to get
things going and stated that oil affected every aspect of
life in Alaska. She pointed out that education would be
nore likely to solve the state's problens than anything
else and related that education should start Dbefore
preschool. She offered that early education stuck with a
person for the rest of their lives and that culture, race,
religion, sex, or anything else should not stand in the way
of an education because they were inpedinents to progress.
She noted that oil affected every aspect of life in Al aska.
She recalled listening to |legislative sessions on the radio
since she was young and offered that the majority of the
unsol ved issues that were being discussed were the sane.
She discussed a testinony the prior day and related that
the testifier did not nmean to of fend anyone; she enpathi zed
with the sentinents of the testifier and related that
sonetinmes people got inpatient for things to get rolling
and solved. She stated that inmgrants to the Al aska
claimed that a piece of land was theirs, but offered that
the whole of Alaska belonged primarily to the indigenous
people. She offered that the rules, laws, and regul ations
that were proposed every year were based on the personal
interests of those who passed them She opined that Native
peopl es were the smartest people in the world because they
did not keep know edge for their own selfish interests, but

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 18 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



shared what they learned with the world in order to solve
pr obl ens.

4:59:36 PM

Nl CK MOE, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified
against SB 21. He agreed with the governor's principles,
but not with the approach to acconplishing them He related
t hat Al aska needed infrastructure and that funding would be
better served for that purpose. He observed that Al aska
needed to look at the issue like a business and offered
that for every dollar that was given away, the state should
demand nore than a dollar back. He opined that the state
shoul d have a conplete picture before making a decision on
this legislation. He furthered that a conplete audit should
be done on Alaska's Cear and Equitable Share (ACES), as
well as a conplete assessnment of what oil resources Al aska
had. He observed that the state should know what it was
working with in order to plan out its long-term future and
make infornmed decisions. He expressed appreciation for what
oil had done for Alaska and pointed out that he did not

fault anyone for advocating for the bill. He stated that it
was an oil conpany's job to nmaxim ze its profits in Al aska;
likewise, it was Alaska's job to keep in mnd the best

interests of the whole state. He offered that SB 21 had
been rushed and that the state should take its tine to
exanm ne the details of the legislation. He concluded that
Al aska needed to diversify its econony.

5:03: 39 PM

JUDY PATRI CK, SELF, WASSILA (via teleconference), spoke in
support of SB 21 and offered that the state could not
continue with Alaska's Clear and Equitable Share (ACES).
She stated that the goal was nore oil in the pipeline,
which would not happen with the state's punitive tax
structure. She opined that the state could not wait for
another legislative session to take action and that new
projects took a long tine to sanction. She agreed with the
governor's pr oposed changes and preferred t hat
progressivity be renoved from SB 21. She concluded that
ACES was not working and encouraged the commttee to pass
| egislation in the current session.

5:05: 22 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 19 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



LAURA FAGNANI, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 21. She related that oi
production levels were directly tied to well-paying jobs in
the oil and gas industry. She pointed out that alnost al
of the state's revenues were tied to oil production;
simlarly, her enployees' futures were tied to production
levels in the pipeline. She stated that her conpany was
indirectly reliant on the oil and gas industry. She pointed
out that her conpany received nost of its revenue from the
oil and gas industry and that the decisions the conmttee
made affected her enployees and people across the state.
She observed that she operated in a very conpetitive market
pl ace and discussed the nature of staying conpetitive in
business in relation to Alaska's oil issue. She stated that
Al aska had a "pricing" problem and that changi ng ACES was a
step in the right direction to increasing production. She
opined that Al aska had lost its conpetitive position in a
gl obal playing field and that the state's future relied on
taki ng action now.

5:08: 05 PM

MARLEANNA HALL, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), spoke
in support of SB 21, but related that it was not enough.
She di scussed her education in Al aska. She related that her
son was currently in public school, which was being
subsidized by the taxes paid by the oil industry and
poi nted out that his future education would be paid for the
Per manent Fund Dividend, which was a royalty from oil
production. She urged the commtted to end progressivity
and asked them to encourage investnment in the future
devel opment of Al aska's natural resources. She concluded
that the Al aska needed to keep the locally owned businesses
open and expressed that the state needed to consider the
| ong-term over the short-term

5:09:24 PM

PHI LLI S SPENCER- BELZ, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via tel econference),
expressed that the oil belonged to the Inupiat people. She
related that she was | nupiat and was a nenber of the Tribe
of Barrow. She pointed out that her tribe had been in the

region far longer than statehood or oil production but
received very little noney from the oil. She pointed out
that her tribe did receive noney from one oil field;

however, they had to give 70 percent of the revenue from
that field to other native corporations. She pointed out

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 20 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



that the corporations her tribe gave oil revenue to did not
give shares to their children, take care of their elders,
and did not have jobs. She discussed the Native honel ess
situation in Anchorage and related that there were too may
dead, honel ess Natives who had no disability or dividends.
She stated that Alaska's oil canme from Inupiat |and and
that if her tribe had to give 70 percent of its oil revenue
to other cor por ati ons, the current Native honel ess
situation should not exist. She observed that three of the
Native corporations in Alaska were the largest private |and
owners in the nation. She relayed that she was for oi
production if it was fair, but opined that it was currently
not fair. She explained that the oil was from the Inupiat
Tribal Region and was not from the other tribal regions.
She offered that Alaska did not enforce the Indian Child
Wel fare Act and stated that there were a lot of low quality
schools. She stated that there was a lack of Native hires,
Native job training, and Native job respect. She expressed
dismay at the treatnent of Natives in Al aska. She recalled
how Al aska Natives had been forced into boarding schools
and that in the schools, the students were forced into
sexual slavery, forced to speak English, and endured a
nunber of abuses. She offered that Natives had been taken
away from their tribes, cultures, and parents and opined
that the generational abuse had gone on to create people
that did not know how to nanage their own tribes properly.
She concluded that wthout the Arctic Slope Regional
Cor poration, there would be no oil devel opnent in Al aska.

5:13: 47 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough CLOSED public testinony.

5:14: 04 PM

Senat or Bi shop expressed appreciation to the testifiers. He
acknow edged that nobst people agreed that sonething needed
to be done, but that sonme thought ACES was currently
working. He discussed the need to diversify Al aska's
econony and noted that the coments of testifiers were
taken to heart.

5:14: 58 PM
#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 5:15 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 21 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 22 03/06/13 3:05 P. M



